
VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MINUTES 

WORKSHOP 
FEBRUARY 5, 2009 

6:30 P.M. 
 

1. Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
2.       Sherri Carbo– Present   Bill Madison – Present 
       Dean Evans – Present   Jeff Sturtevant – Absent 
       Glenn Holloway – Present  Kristi Young – Absent 
 
3.       Mayor Smith opened the floor to Norma Strain for an update on the quilt 

show.  Norma said her daughter is a graphic designer and passed out the  
flyer she made.  She said her son got them a free web site.  She also said 
obtained an EIN number and all vendors may take the donations off their 
taxes.  Norma said an APQS certified quilt appraiser will be there to appraise 
quilts.  She said a noted author will be there to sign her book about Miami 
Valley quilts.  She said they have radio coverage and also all vendors are 
putting it on their web site.  Norma said there will music performed during the 
event in the cafeteria.  She said security is a necessity and she will coordinate 
with Bob and has some volunteers that will stay in the building all night.  She 
stated there will be between $300 and $400 thousand dollars worth of 
merchandise in the buildings.  Norma said she will take all the volunteers she 
can get to clean and set up.  She said a group will landscape the front of the 
building if the village will pay for the mulch.  No objections to paying for the 
mulch.  Norma said someone may want to sell bottled water and on Sunday 
the church will not be doing food.  It was suggested that Head Start may want 
to do Sunday with a bake sale.  Mayor Smith asked if the village would get a 
quilt commemorating the first event and Norma said she can get that.  She 
said if all goes well they think the event could be held every other year.  She 
said they are keeping excellent records so someone can come in and take it 
over any time.  She says they are having donations for door prizes and have 
asked P & G for cleaning donations.  Carbo asked who was doing the food 
and Norma said Mt. Zion Baptist Church ladies fellowship.  Mayor Smith 
stated it is a pleasure to do this event and see this much participation.  Norma 
said she would like a volunteer meeting in May.   

             
4.       Administrator Craig said it has been an interesting 10 or 11 days and has       

been challenging.  He said the block grant has been submitted to the county 
as well as the OKI application.  He said there may be some funds available to  
use for water and he will coordinate with Phil on the needs of the department.   
He said it is part of an economic stimulus and there are no criteria yet.  It is 

due  
in by March 1st.   There were no objections to put in for this.  He said the  



county has money that will be divided out to demolish vacant property or 
make improvements to blighted property.  He said the village has five 
properties that we may be able to get torn down.  He said 141 E. McKinley, 
41 E. McKinley, 15 Broadway, 66 W. McKinley, and 46 W. McKinley.  The 
county has to have a plan to disperse and are looking at 1/3 to rehab, 1/3 for 
homeless projects and 1/3 for demolition.  Bob said the ODNR money which 
is close to $5000 can do the gazebo and walk way in the Main Street Park.  He 
said that LCNB has applied for their permits.  Bob also said Target has 
applied for a liquor license and we can request a hearing if want to.  No one 
had a desire for a hearing.  Bob also said Rozzi’s is sending application for the 
fireworks and township is still interested in paying half.  Craig said the county 
will be getting the easements for the two bridges to be constructed at Lebanon 
Road.  He also said a public hearing for Head Start is going to be held.  Mayor 
Smith stated he was doing a great job. 

 
5.       Solicitor Nixon said he has spoke with the bank about the CDBG loan  

that the home is in foreclosure.  He said he has not received a figure on what 
they want to pay yet.  He said he has reviewed the other outstanding CDBG 
loans with Sharon and is researching the fact that some have changed hands 
without the debt being paid.    

 
6.       Sgt. Boylan asked if he needed to post overtime for extra patrol 

during the quilt show and Mayor Smith said to coordinate with Bob. 
 
      7.         Council member Madison said he would like to share with council feed 

      back on the annexation Tuesday the 3rd with commissioners.  He said it is     
      a balancing act of our growth and rural setting and the protection and  
      preservation of our natural resource.  He stated that as our logo shows the  
      river running through our village as well as the statement of reclaiming our 
      past.  Bill stated anything but a yes vote is against preservation and I praise  
      council and the mayor for stepping up to the plate and shedding a light for 
      others to follow. 
    

8.        Council member Carbo said she would like to commend the snow  
plowing crew.  She said hands down ours were the best.  Holloway  
said he agrees with Sherri and said Mason was the only one better but 
they used salt on everything. 

 
9. A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m. by Sturtevant,  

seconded by Evans, all yeas.  
 
 
 
____________________________                   _________________________ 
Sharon Louallen, Fiscal Officer                          James D. Smith, Mayor   

      


